
EDGERTON CITY COUNCIL 
AMENDED MEETING AGENDA 

CITY HALL, 404 EAST NELSON STREET 
May 9, 2019 

7:00 P.M. 
 

Call to Order 
1. Roll Call ___ Roberts ____ Longanecker ____ Brown ____ Conus ____ Lewis ____ Smith 
2. Welcome 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Consent Agenda (Consent Agenda items will be acted upon by one motion unless a Council 
member requests an item be removed for discussion and separate action)  
4. Approve Minutes for April 25, 2019 Regular City Council Meeting 
5. Approve Resolution No. 05-09-19A Approving The Mayoral Appointments For the City 

Treasurer, City Prosecutor, Municipal Judge, And City Attorney For The City of Edgerton, 
Kansas 

6. Approve Resolution No. 05-09-19B Authorizing the Closure of Certain Public Streets During 
the Edgerton Summer Kickoff Block Party  

7. Approve Resolution No. 05-09-19C Recognizing the Edgerton Summer Kickoff Block Party as 
a “Public Festival” for Purposes of the City’s Noise Restrictions 

8. Approve Resolution No. 05-09-19D Authorizing the Closure of Certain Public Streets During 
the Edgerton Frontier Days Festival, Permission to Use Requested City Buildings/Public 
Spaces, and the approval of Additional Service Request  

 
Regular Agenda 
9. Public Comments. Persons who wish to address the City Council regarding items not on 

the agenda and that are under the jurisdiction of the City Council may do so when called 
upon by the Mayor. Comments on personnel matters and matters pending before court or 
other outside tribunals are not permitted. Please notify the City Clerk before the meeting if 
you wish to speak. Speakers are limited to three (3) minutes. Any presentation is for 
informational purposes only. No action will be taken. 
 

10. Declaration. At this time Council members may declare any conflict or communication they 
have had that might influence their ability to impartially consider today’s issues. 

 
Business Requiring Action  
 
11. CONSIDER ORDINANCE NO. 2010 AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF EDGERTON, 

KANSAS, TO ENTER INTO AN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANT AGREEMENT 
WITH HOSTESS BRANDS, LLC 

 
Motion: ________ Second: ________ Vote: ____ 

 
 
12. PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING A REQUEST BY THE FRONTIER DAYS 

ASSOCIATION FOR A WAIVER (AS ALLOWED PUSUANT TO SECTION 3-202 OF 
ARTICLE 1 OF CHAPTER III OF THE CITY CODE) FROM THE PROHIBITION 



AGAINST SERVING ALCOHOLIC LIQUOR WITHIN 200 FEET OF THE LIBRARY FOR 
THE JUNE 14 AND 15, 2019 ANNUAL FRONTIER DAYS FESTIVAL   
 

13. CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 05-09-19E TEMPORARILY WAIVING CITY 
PROHIBITION AS TO THE SALE AND CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOLIC LIQUOR ON 
CERTAIN PUBLIC PROPERTY, AND RECOGNIZING FRONTIER DAYS AS A “PUBLIC 
FESTIVAL’ FOR PURPOSES OF THE CITY’S NOISE RESTRICTIONS  

 
Motion: ________ Second: ________ Vote: ____ 
 

14. CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 05-09-19F AUTHORIZING A SPECIAL EVENT 
PERMIT FOR SALE AND CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOLIC LIQUOR ON CERTAIN 
PUBLIC PROPERTY WITHIN THE CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 

 
 Motion: ________ Second: ________ Vote: ____ 

 
15. Report By The City Administrator 

 
16. Report By the Mayor 
 
17. Future Meeting/Event Reminders: 

• May 11th: City Wide Garage Sale 
• May 14th: Planning Commission – 7PM 
• May 15th: Senior Lunch & Bingo - Noon 
• May 18th: City Wide Clean Up 
• May 23rd: City Council – 7PM  
• June 1st: Summer Kick Off Block Party – 6:30PM 

 
18. CONSIDER RECESSING INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO K.S.A. 75-

4319(B)(2) FOR CONSULTATION WITH AN ATTORNEY DEEMED PRIVILEGED IN 
THE ATTORNEY-CLIENT RELATIONSHIP TO INCLUDE CITY ATTORNEY AND CITY 
ADMINISTRATOR 

 
19. Adjourn Motion: ________ Second: ________ Vote: ____  



1 
 

City of Edgerton, Kansas 
Minutes of City Council Regular Session 

April 25, 2019 
 
 A Regular Session of the City Council was held in the Edgerton City Hall, 404 E. Nelson 

Edgerton, Kansas on April 25, 2019.  The meeting convened at 7:00 p.m. with Mayor 
Roberts presiding. 

 
1. ROLL CALL 

Ron Conus  present 
Clay Longanecker  present 
Josh Lewis  absent 
Katee Smith  present  
Jody Brown  absent 
 
With a quorum present, the meeting commenced. 

 
Staff in attendance: City Administrator Beth Linn 

Assistant City Administrator Scott Peterson  
City Attorney Lee Hendricks 
City Clerk Rachel James 

    Development Services Director Katy Crow 
    Finance Director Karen Kindle 
    Public Works Director Dan Merkh 
    Public Works Superintendent Trey Whitaker 
                

2. WELCOME  
 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

4. Approve Minutes for April 11, 2019 Regular City Council Meeting 
5. Approved Application FP2019-02, Final Plat Inland Port 51 – Logistics Park Kansas City 

South, Second Plat, Generally Located at the Northeast Corner of 207th Street and Waverly 
Road 

6. Approve Application FP2019-01, Final Plat TSL Edgerton Phase I & II, Generally Located 
Along the South Side of 191st Street and the West Side of Waverly Road 

7. Approve Ordinance No. 2008 An Ordinance Amending Chapter XV, Article 1 Of The 
Municipal Code Of The City Of Edgerton, Kansas To Include Section 15-134 Regarding 
Hydrant Water Meters and Repealing All Other Ordinances Or Parts Of Ordinances In 
Conflict Therewith 

 
 Mayor Roberts asked that Agenda Item #5 be removed for discussion. 
 

Motion by Smith, Second by Longanecker to Remove Agenda Item #5 and approve 
items #4,6, and 7 of the consent agenda. Motion passed 3-0.  

 



2 
 

Agenda Item #5: Katy Crow, Development Services Director, stated that Staff had 
noticed a change in the Final Plat after Planning Commission recommendation but 
before Governing Body approval. That version of the Final Plat was submitted for 
signatures and Governing Body approval. The setback changed on the rear side of the 
parcel.  
 
Councilmember Longanecker asked if there was still enough room setback wise. Ms. 
Crow stated that there was.  
 
Brett Powell, Northpoint Representative, was available for questions from the Council. 
Mayor Roberts stated that moving forward, it is important that everything on the plats 
submitted matched.  
 
Motion by Longanecker, Second by Smith to approve Application FP2019-02, Final Plat 
Inland Port 51 – Logistics Park Kansas City South, Second Plat, Generally Located at the 
Northeast Corner of 207th Street and Waverly Road. Motion passed 3-0.  

 
REGULAR AGENDA 

8. Public Comments. None. 
 

9. Declaration. None.  
 
10. Proclamation by the Mayor Declaring April 2019 as National Fair Housing Month in the City 

of Edgerton, Kansas 
 

Mayor Roberts read the Proclamation for Fair Housing Month in the City of Edgerton, 
Kansas. Mayor Roberts spoke generally on the importance of Fair Housing and that it is an 
vital proclamation for Edgerton to make.  

 BUSINESS REQUIRING ACTION 
 
11. CONSIDER THE 2018 AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS PRESENTED BY 

VARNEY & ASSOCIATES  
 
April Swartz, Auditor from Varney & Associates, stated there were no issues or findings to 
report. Ms. Swartz also stated that the City of Edgerton received a clean opinion, which is 
the highest rating the City can receive.  
 
Ms. Swartz summarized the various reports highlighting that there were no budget 
violations and no cash violations.  
 
Motion by Longanecker, Second by Conus to accept Auditor report as presented. Motion 
passed 3-0.  
 

12. PUBLIC HEARING FOR RESOLUTION NO. 04-25-19A DETERMINING THE INTENT 
OF THE CITY TO ISSUE ITS INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS IN ONE OR MORE 
SERIES, THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF ALL SERIES NOT TO EXCEED 



3 
 

$1,000,000,000, TO PAY THE COST OF ACQUIRING, CONSTRUCTING AND 
EQUIPPING COMMERCIAL FACILITIES WITHIN THE LOGISTICS PARK-KC, PHASE 
TWO  

 
Scott Anderson, Bond Attorney, introduced the overview of the Master Resolution of Intent 
for Phase Two of Logistics Park-KC. Each phase requires the notification of the County and 
the School District, both of these have been completed. The public hearing notice was also 
published in the Gardner News.  
 
Attached in the packed was a Cost-Benefit Analysis completed by Columbia Capital for 
Phase Two of the Logistics Park. They estimate that approximately $43,000,000 would be 
added into the Public Infrastructure Fund from Phase Two. Mr. Anderson stated that this is 
based on Phase One actuals and is a good estimate.  
 
Mr. Anderson stated that the Master Resolution of Intent is not required by State statute but 
is the current practice of the City.  
 
Mayor Roberts opened the Public Hearing at 7:17 pm.  
 
There were no public comments.  
 
Mayor Roberts closed the Public Hearing at 7:18 pm.  

 
13. CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 04-25-19A DETERMINING THE INTENT OF THE 

CITY TO ISSUE ITS INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS IN ONE OR MORE SERIES, 
THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF ALL SERIES NOT TO EXCEED 
$1,000,000,000, TO PAY THE COST OF ACQUIRING, CONSTRUCTING AND 
EQUIPPING COMMERCIAL FACILITIES WITHIN THE LOGISTICS PARK-KC, PHASE 
TWO  

 
Scott Anderson, Bond Attorney, stated this is the Resolution in which is City stating we 
intend to issue Bonds, up to $1,000,000,000, for these projects.  
 
There were no questions or comments.  
 
Motion by Longanecker, Second by Smith to approve Resolution No. 04-25-19A.   
 
Motion passed, 3-0.  

 
14. PUBLIC HEARING FOR RESOLUTION NO. 04-25-19B CONSENTING TO THE 

PARTIAL ASSIGNMENT OF A RESOLUTION OF INTENT FOR THE LOGISTICS 
PARK-KC, PHASE TWO, FROM EDGERTON LAND HOLDING COMPANY, LLC TO 
ELHC LI, LLC, OR ITS SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST 
 
Scott Anderson, Bond Attorney, presented on 04-25-19B, which is the Partial Assignment of 
a Resolution of Intent for ELHC 51. This will be the first project under the second Master 
Resolution of Intent. The County and School District were notified of this Public Hearing and 
the notification was published in the Gardner News.  



4 
 

The net value to the Public Infrastructure Fund would be $2,500,000.  
 
Mayor Roberts opened the Public Hearing at 7: 21 pm. 
 
There were no questions or comments. 
 
Mayor Roberts closed the Public Hearing at 7:22 pm.  

 
 
15. CONSIDER RESOLUTION NO. 04-25-19B CONSENTING TO THE PARTIAL 

ASSIGNMENT OF A RESOLUTION OF INTENT FOR THE LOGISTICS PARK-KC, 
PHASE TWO, FROM EDGERTON LAND HOLDING COMPANY, LLC TO ELHC LI, LLC 
OR ITS SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST 
 
Scott Anderson, Bond Attorney, stated that this is the first project for Logistics Park-KC 
Phase Two. This takes $60,000,000 of the amount approved in 04-25-19A and allocates it to 
the ELHC 51, LLC project.  
 
This project tentatively is a 765,000 sq. ft. distribution warehouse. This is the first step in 
the IRB process.  
 
Mayor Roberts stated that in the Cost-Benefit Analysis it anticipates $2.475 million to 
Edgerton Public Infrastructure Funds. Additionally, over the next 10 years the county would 
receive $430,000 and the School District, approximately $92,000.  
 
Motion by Longanecker, Second by Smith to approve Resolution No. 04-25-19B.  
 
Motion passed 3-0.  

 
16. CONSIDER ORDINANCE NO. 2009 WHICH ADOPTS THE PLANNING 

COMMISSION’S RECOMMENDATION TO APPROVE A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
TO ALLOW A CARGO CONTAINER STORAGE YARD AND TRUCK PARKING/ 
MAINTENANCE FACILITY ON PARCELS CONTAINING AN L-P ZONING 
DESIGNATION – AT 19140 WAVERLY ROAD (SOUTH SIDE OF 191ST STREET, 
WEST OF WAVERLY ROAD) 
 
Katy Crow, Development Services Director, introduced the request by TSL to combine Phase 
1 and Phase 2 operations under one Conditional Use Permit. This would include the addition 
of a fueling station, maintenance facility, and various other upgrades to the property. TSL 
has been the owner of this property from the beginning and has invested greatly into the 
site; the expansion has been planned from the initial phase of building.  
 
Councilmember Longanecker asked what length of time Conditional Use Permits cover. Ms. 
Crow stated that Planning Commission recommends a 10-year approval or until 2029.  
 
Motion by Longanecker, Second by Smith to approve Ordinance No. 2009.  
 
Motion passed 3-0.  



5 
 

17. Report by the City Administrator  
- Presentation of First Quarter Financial Reports  
 
Karen Kindle, Finance Director, presented on the 2019 First Quarter Financial Reports. Ms. 
Kindle gave a brief overview of the revenues and expenditures from the General Fund.  
 
Councilmember Conus asked about the licenses and permits line items. Beth Linn stated 
that these revenues are seasonal and depend on the projects started. 
 
The Water Fund expenditure for production a little higher than 25% due to paying up front 
for the HAWC annual minimum payment.  
 
The Sewer Fund is within the expected expenditures. The Sewer line maintenance line item 
is a bit higher than 25% due to the purchase of smoke testing equipment.  

 
18. Report by the Mayor  

 
Mayor Roberts briefly reviewed the 2019 First Quarter Code Enforcement Report. He stated 
that inoperable vehicles are trending downward due to more enforcement.  
 
Councilmember Longanecker asked about the increase in parking violations. Mayor Roberts 
stated that there were more snow events this year. Mayor also stated it was worth Council 
taking note of the activity. Mayor Roberts stated that Mr. Charlie Lydon does a tremendous 
job at doing the worst job in any city. He is so even-keeled and is really tremendous at his 
role.  
 
Mayor Roberts also stated that he thought the Chamber Dinner was great for the City of 
Gardner and stated he would leave it at that.  
 

19. Future Meeting/Event Reminders:  
• May 11th: City Wide Garage Sale 
• May 14th: Planning Commission – 7PM 
• May 15th: Senior Lunch & Bingo – Noon  
• May 18th: City Wide Clean Up  
• May 23rd: City Council – 7PM  
• June 1st: Summer Kick Off Block Party – 6:30PM 

 
20.  Adjourn  
 

Motion by Smith, Second by Conus to adjourn.  
 

Motion was approved 3-0. The meeting adjourned at 7:58 pm.  



 

Agenda Item: Consider Resolution No. 05-09-19A Approving The Mayoral 
Appointments For The City Treasurer, City Prosecutor, Municipal Judge, 
And City Attorney For The City Of Edgerton, Kansas 

Recommendation: Approve Resolution No. 05-09-19A Approving The 
Mayoral Appointments For The City Treasurer, City Prosecutor, Municipal 
Judge, And City Attorney For The City Of Edgerton, Kansas 

 
 

City Council Action Item 
 
 

Council Meeting Date: May 9, 2019 
 
Department: Administration 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Background/Description of Item: 
Chapter 1, Article 3, Section 301 of the Edgerton City Code states that at the first regular 
meeting in May of each year the mayor, by and with the consent of the council, shall appoint 
a city treasurer, and may appoint a city attorney, municipal judge and such other officers as 
may be deemed necessary for the best interest of the city.  
 
Draft Resolution 05-09-19A includes appointment for City Treasurer, City Prosecutor, Municipal 
Judge, and City Attorney as listed below.  
 
City Treasurer: Irene Eastwood  
City Prosecutor: Gerald Merrill  
Municipal Judge: Karen Torline  
City Attorney: Lee Hendricks 
 
Related Ordinance(s) or Statue(s): Edgerton City Code Chapter 1, Article 3, Section 301 

 
 
Funding Source: N/A 
 
Budget Allocated: N/A 
 
Finance Director Approval: N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enclosed: Draft Resolution No. 05-09-19X 
 
Prepared by: Rachel James, City Clerk 



RESOLUTION NO. 05-09-19A 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE MAYORAL APPOINTMENTS FOR THE CITY 
TREASURER, CITY PROSECUTOR, MUNICIPAL JUDGE, AND CITY ATTORNEY FOR THE 
CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 
WHEREAS, City Code requires the Mayor to appoint certain public officials; 

WHEREAS, the appointments named below meet all qualifications set forth by City Code; 

WHEREAS, the Mayor hereby appoints, subject to the approval of the City Council, the 
individuals named below to fill the public appointments for the City of Edgerton, Kansas; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
EDGERTON, KANSAS: 

SECTION ONE:  The City Council hereby approves the following Mayoral appointments to 
serve the City of Edgerton: 
 

Irene Eastwood to serve as City Treasurer; 
Gerald Merrill to serve as City Prosecutor; 
Karen Torline to serve as Municipal Judge; and 
Lee Hendricks to serve as City Attorney  

 
SECTION TWO:  EFFECTIVE DATE 
This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately after its adoption by the 
Governing Body.  
 
ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF EDGERTON, 
KANSAS ON THE 9th DAY OF MAY, 2019.    
       
      CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
       
 
      By: _____________________________________ 
                    Donald Roberts, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Rachel A. James, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Lee W. Hendricks, City Attorney 
       



 

Agenda Item: Consider Resolution No. 05-09-19B Authorizing the Closure 
of Certain Public Streets During the Edgerton Summer Kickoff Block Party 

Recommendation: Approve Resolution No. 05-09-19B Authorizing the 
Closure of Certain Public Streets During the Edgerton Summer Kickoff 
Block Party 

 
 

City Council Action Item 
 
 

Council Meeting Date: May 9, 2019 
 
Department: Parks and Recreation  

 
 
 
 
 
Background/Description of Item: On Saturday, June 1st, the City of Edgerton will host 
the Summer Kickoff Block Party in Downtown Edgerton. The event includes a block party with 
inflatables, games, DJ, face painting, contests and more from 6:30 PM to 9:00 PM. Once the 
sun goes down, the City will host the first Downtown Summer Movie Night featuring 
Incredibles 2.  
 
To support this event, the Parks and Recreation Coordinator has requested the closure of 
Nelson Street (between East 4th Street and East 3rd Street) from 5:00 PM – 11:00 PM. The 
intersections at both E 4th Street/Nelson Street and E 3rd Street/Nelson Street will remain open 
to traffic. 
 
City staff has reviewed the proposed street closures and does not anticipate any conflicts or 
issues. City staff will inform the Johnson County Sheriff’s Office, Johnson County Fire District 
No. 1 and Johnson County Med-Act of the proposed closings.   
 
Related Ordinance(s) or Statue(s): 

 
 
Funding Source: N/A 
 
Budget Allocated: N/A 
 
Finance Director Approval: N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enclosed: Draft Resolution No. 05-09-19B 
 
Prepared by: Madeline Becker, Parks and Recreation Coordinator  



RESOLUTION NO. 05-09-19B 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE CLOSURE OF THE PUBLIC STREETS NAMED HEREIN 
DURING THE EDGERTON SUMMER KICKOFF BLOCK PARTY 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Edgerton, Kansas wishes to provide a safe 
and enjoyable Summer Kickoff Block Party; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has determined that the closure of certain streets would be 

beneficial to the safety and enjoyment of the Summer Kickoff Block Party; and 
 

WHEREAS, City staff has reviewed the proposed street closures and does not anticipate 
any conflicts or issues that would prevent said closures; and 
 

WHEREAS, the following public streets shall be closed to vehicular traffic during 
Edgerton Summer Kickoff Block Party between 5:00 PM until 11:00 PM on June 1, 2019: 

• Nelson Street between East 4th Street to East 3rd Street 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
EDGERTON, KANSAS that the City hereby authorizes the closure of the public streets named 
above for the duration named above for the Edgerton Summer Kickoff Block Party. 
 
SECTION ONE: EFFECTIVE DATE 
This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force immediately after its adoption by the 
Governing Body. 
 
ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF 
EDGERTON, KANSAS ON THE 9TH DAY OF MAY, 2019. 
      
ATTEST:     CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 
 
______________________________ By: _______________________________ 
Rachel A. James, City Clerk                    Donald Roberts, Mayor 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

_______________________________ 
Lee W. Hendricks, City Attorney  



 

Agenda Item: Consider Resolution 05-09-19C Recognizing the Edgerton 
Summer Kickoff Block Party as a “Public Festival” for Purposes of the 
City’s Noise Restrictions 

Recommendation: Approve Resolution 05-09-19C Recognizing the 
Edgerton Summer Kickoff Block Party as a “Public Festival” for Purposes 
of the City’s Noise Restrictions 

 
 

City Council Action Item 
 
 

Council Meeting Date: May 9, 2019 
 
Department: Parks and Recreation 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Background/Description of Item: On Saturday, June 1st, the City of Edgerton will host 
the Summer Kickoff Block Party in Downtown Edgerton. The event includes a block party with 
inflatables, games, DJ, face painting, contests and more from 6:30 PM to 9:00 PM. Once the 
sun goes down, the City will host the first Downtown Summer Movie Night featuring 
Incredibles 2.  
 
Within this resolution is permission to waive the City’s noise restrictions on the evening of 
Saturday, June 1 for the first Downtown Summer Movie Night anticipated to be completed by 
11 p.m. that evening. 
 
Related Ordinance(s) or Statue(s): Article 6 of Chapter XI of the Code of the City of 
Edgerton 

 
 
Funding Source: N/A 
 
Budget Allocated: N/A 
 
Finance Director Approval: N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enclosed: Draft Resolution 05-09-19C 
 
Prepared by: Madeline Becker, Parks and Recreation Coordinator  



RESOLUTION NO. 05-09-19C 

A RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING SUMMER KICKOFF BLOCK PARTY AS A “PUBLIC 
FESTIVAL” FOR THE PURPOSES OF THE CITY’S NOISE RESTRICTIONS 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Edgerton, Kansas wishes to provide a safe 
and enjoyable Summer Kickoff Block Party; and 

   
 WHEREAS, Article 6 of Chapter XI of the Code of the City of Edgerton regulates the 
levels of noise and sound within the City but said regulations do not apply when the governing 
body recognizes the event where the noise and sound is to occur as a “public festival”.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
EDGERTON, KANSAS, THAT: 

SECTION ONE: Summer Kickoff Block Party a “Public Festival”: Edgerton Summer 
Kickoff Block Party is hereby recognized as a public festival and, therefore, the noise restrictions 
contained within Article 6 of Chapter XI of the Code of the City of Edgerton shall not apply to 
noise and sounds made or generated by the public festival to be held on June 1, 2019. 

SECTION TWO: Effective Date: This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force 
immediately after its adoption by the Governing Body. 

ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF 
EDGERTON, KANSAS ON THE 9TH DAY OF MAY 2019. 

      

ATTEST:     CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 

 

 

______________________________ By: _______________________________ 

Rachel A. James, City Clerk          Donald Roberts, Mayor 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Lee W. Hendricks, City Attorney 



 

Agenda Item: Consider Resolution No. 05-09-19D Authorizing the 
Closure of Certain Public Streets During the Edgerton Frontier Days 
Festival, Permission to Use Requested City Buildings/Public Spaces, and 
the approval of Additional Service Requests. 

 
 

City Council Action Item 
 
 

Council Meeting Date: May 9, 2019 
 
Department: Parks and Recreation 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Background/Description of Item: 
The Edgerton community celebrates its heritage with their annual Frontier Days. Since 1971 
this celebration has brought the community together through carnival, craft, sports, music and 
parade. This year’s event will take place Friday June 14th - Saturday, June 15th. Full schedule 
of details may be found at the event website at https://frontier-days.com/. The event is 
supported by the Edgerton Frontier Days Association.   
 
Similar to recent years, the Edgerton Frontier Days Association has submitted their special 
event permit application including several requests to support the event that include closure of 
various public streets, use of certain city facilities/public spaces, etc. Below is a summary of 
those requests. Staff has added additional road closures to facilitate spaces for handicapped 
parking and additional staging of public safety vehicles or tour buses for musicians. Staff 
additions are noted below in red. Enclosed is a map illustrating the road closures. Also shown 
on the map are recommended locations to temporarily sign as no parking. Staff will work with 
the City Attorney to determine the appropriate steps for City Council to consider the not 
parking request at the May 23, 2019 City Council meeting.  
 
Street Closure 
The Edgerton Frontier Days Committee has requested the closure of the following street 
beginning at 9:00 AM on Tuesday, June 11th until 12:00 PM on Sunday, June 16th:  
 

• East 4th Street between Nelson and McCarty Streets; 
 
The Edgerton Frontier Days Committee has requested the closure of the following streets 
beginning at 8:00 AM on Friday, June 14th until 12:00 PM on Sunday, June 16th: 
 

• East 4th Street between Nelson and south to the nearest alley; 
• Hulett Street between East 4th and East 5th Streets and;  
• Nelson Street between East 2nd and East 3rd Streets and; 
• Nelson Street between East 3rd and East 4th Streets and; 
• Nelson Street between East 4th Street to the East 5th Street  



 
The Edgerton Frontier Days Committee has requested the closure of the following street on 
Saturday, June 15th for the community parade: 
 

• Nelson Street between West 8th Street to East 5th Street. 
 
Use of City Facilities/Public Spaces 
The Edgerton Frontier Days Committee has requested permission to use the following City 
Facilities/Public Spaces during the time of the festival: 
 

• Downtown Greenspace;  
• All designated streets and sidewalks that are requested above for street closures; 
• Office and garage located at 305 E. Nelson; 
• City Hall; 
• Downtown Maintenance shop beginning on Monday, June 12th at 8:00 AM. 

 
Additional Service Requests 
The Edgerton Frontier Days Committee has requested the following additional Service 
Requests to support the festival: 
 

• City to hang street banners by Wednesday, June 12th; 
• City to order event dumpsters and trash bins for the festival days; 
• City to issue camping permits to carnival workers at Edgerton Lake for the week 

prior to the festival and during the festival. 
 
City staff has reviewed the proposed street closures, the facility/public space use requests, 
and other service requests and does not anticipate any conflicts or issues.  
 
City staff recommends approving all requests pending proof of the following: 
 

• Certificate of Insurance for Edgerton Frontier Days with the City of Edgerton 
additionally insured. 

• Certificate of Insurance for each Vendor with the City of Edgerton additionally 
insured. 

 
If approved, City staff will inform the Johnson County Sheriff’s Office and Johnson County Fire 
District 1 of the proposed closings.    
 
 
Related Ordinance(s) or Statue(s): 

 
 
Funding Source: N/A 
 
Budget Allocated: N/A 
 
Finance Director Approval:  
 



Recommendation: Approve Resolution No. 05-09-19D Authorizing the 
Closure of Certain Public Streets During the Edgerton Frontier Days 
Festival, Permission to use requested City Buildings/Public Spaces, and 
the approval of additional Service Requests.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enclosed: 

• Draft Resolution No. 05-09-19D 
• Map of Street Closures and Proposed No Parking 
• Frontier Days Special Event Application 

 
 
 
Prepared by:  Scott Peterson, Assistant City Administrator 
  
 



RESOLUTION NO. 05-09-19D 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CLOSURE OF CERTAIN PUBLIC STREETS DURING 
THE EDGERTON FRONTIER DAYS FESTIVAL, PERMISSION TO USE REQUESTED CITY 
BUILDINGD/PUBLIC SPACES, AND THE APPROVAL OF ADDITIONAL SERVICE 
REQUESTS 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Edgerton, Kansas wishes to provide a safe 
and enjoyable Frontier Days Festival; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City has determined that the closure of certain streets and the use of 

certain City facilities and public spaces would be beneficial to the safety and enjoyment of the 
Frontier Days Festival; and 

 
WHEREAS, City staff has reviewed the proposed street closures and does not anticipate 

any conflicts or issues that would prevent said closures; and 
 

WHEREAS, the following public streets shall be closed to vehicular traffic during 
Edgerton Frontier Days between 9:00 AM on June 11, 2018 until 12:00 PM on June 16, 2018: 

• East 4th Street between Nelson and McCarty Streets; 
 
WHEREAS, the following public streets shall be closed to vehicular traffic during 

Edgerton Frontier Days between 8:00 AM on June 14, 2018 until 12:00 PM on June 16, 2018:  
• East 4th Street between Nelson and south to the nearest alley; 
• Hulett Street between East 4th and East 5th Streets and;  
• Nelson Street between East 2nd and East 3rd Streets and; 
• Nelson Street between East 3rd and East 4th Streets and; 
• Nelson Street between East 4th Street to the East 5th Street  

 
WHEREAS, the following public streets shall be closed to vehicular traffic during 

Edgerton Frontier Days on June 15, 2018 during the Frontier Days Parade:  
• Nelson Street between West 8th Street to East 5th Street. 

 
WHEREAS, the following City owned facilities and public spaces will be reserved for the 

use of Edgerton Frontier Days: 
• Downtown Greenspace;  
• All designated streets and sidewalks that are requested above for street closures; 
• Office and garage located at 305 E. Nelson; 
• City Hall; 
• Downtown Maintenance shop beginning on Monday, June 12th at 8:00 AM. 

 
WHEREAS, the following service requests will be carried out by the City: 
• City to hang street banners by Wednesday, June 12th; 
• City to order event dumpsters and trash bins for the festival days; 
• City to issue camping permits to carnival workers at Edgerton Lake for the week 

prior to the festival and during the festival. 
 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
EDGERTON, KANSAS that the City hereby authorizes the closure of the public streets named 
above, the reservation of City facilities named above, the reservation of City public spaces 
named above and further authorizes that the above named service requests are carried out for 
the durations specified above for the 2019 Edgerton Frontier Days Festival.  
 
SECTION ONE: EFFECTIVE DATE This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force 
immediately after its adoption by the Governing Body.  
  
ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF 
EDGERTON, KANSAS ON THE 9TH DAY OF MAY, 2019. 
   
     
ATTEST:                                                   CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS  
  
  
______________________________             By: _______________________________  
Rachel A. James, City Clerk                                    Donald Roberts, Mayor  
  
APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
 
_______________________________  
Lee W. Hendricks, City Attorney   



LEGEND 

Street Closed 

No Parking: Both Sides 

No Parking: One Side 

Barricade 

Message Board 























[Summary Published in The Gardner News on May 15, 2019] 
 
 
 
 ORDINANCE NO.  2010 
 
 AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, TO 

ENTER INTO AN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANT AGREEMENT WITH 
HOSTESS BRANDS, LLC 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Edgerton, Kansas (the “City”), desires to promote, stimulate and develop 
the general welfare and economic prosperity of the City and its inhabitants and thereby to further promote, 
stimulate and develop the general welfare and economic prosperity of the State of Kansas; and  
 
 WHEREAS, ELHC LI, LLC, a Kansas limited liability company, is constructing an approximately 
765,000 sq. ft. warehouse and distribution facility located at the northeast corner of Waverly Road and 207th 
Street in Edgerton, Kansas (the “Facility”), the costs of which will be paid for or reimbursed with the proceeds 
of not to exceed $60,000,000 of the City’s Industrial Revenue Bonds (ELHC LI, LLC Project) Series 2019; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, Hostess Brands, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “Company”), desires 
to lease the Facility from ELHC on the condition that it receive a $596,700 economic development grant (the 
“Grant”) from the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Article 12, Section 5 of the Kansas Constitution gives the City home rule authority and, 
pursuant to such authority, the City is authorized to make economic development grants to facilitate economic 
development; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
EDGERTON, KANSAS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1. Findings of Fact.  The City finds and determines that the Grant is necessary to 
induce the Company to sign a lease and occupy the Facility.  The City further finds and determines that the 
Company’s use of the Facility will create a substantial number of jobs and other benefits for the community 
and will promote the public interest and public welfare of the community. 
 
 Section 2. Approval of Grant.  The City hereby approves the Grant being made to the 
Company in an amount of $596,700.  The Grant shall be paid over a 6.5-year term solely from funds on 
deposit in the public infrastructure fund for Phase 2 of the Logistics Park.  The Grant shall not be a general 
obligation of the City, and shall be subject to the provisions of the Kansas cash basis law, the Kansas budget 
law, and other laws of the State of Kansas. 
 
 Section 3. Authorization of Grant Agreement.  The City is hereby authorized to enter into 
the Economic Development Grant Agreement (ELHC LI, LLC Project – Hostess Brands, LLC Grant) with 
the Company in substantially the form of Exhibit A (the “Grant Agreement”), with such changes therein as 
shall be approved by the officers of the City executing such documents, such officers’ signatures thereon 
being conclusive evidence of their approval thereof.   
 
 Section 4. Execution of Documents.  The Mayor of the City is hereby authorized and directed 
to execute the Grant Agreement and such other documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary 



2 
 

or desirable to carry out and comply with the intent of this Ordinance, for and on behalf of and as the act and 
deed of the City.  The City Clerk of the City is hereby authorized and directed to attest to and affix the seal of 
the City to the Grant Agreement and such other documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary. 
 
 Section 5. Further Authority.  The City shall, and the officers, employees and agents of the 
City are hereby authorized and directed to, take such action, expend such funds and execute such other 
documents, certificates and instruments as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the 
intent of this Ordinance and to carry out, comply with and perform the duties of the City with respect to the 
Grant Agreement. 
 
 Section 6. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its 
passage, approval and publication in summary form in the official City newspaper. 
 
PASSED by the Council of the City of Edgerton, Kansas, this 9th day of May, 2019. 
 
 
 
 
      ________________________________________ 
      Donald Roberts, Mayor 
 
[SEAL] 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Rachel A. James, City Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Scott W. Anderson, City Economic Development Counsel 
 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

FORM OF GRANT AGREEMENT 



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANT AGREEMENT 
(ELHC LI, LLC PROJECT – HOSTESS BRANDS, LLC GRANT) 

 
 
 THIS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT GRANT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made 
this ______ day of May, 2019, between the CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS, a municipal corporation 
(the “City”), and HOSTESS BRANDS, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (“Recipient”). 
 

RECITALS: 
 

A. ELHC LI, LLC, a Kansas limited liability company (“ELHC”), is constructing an 
approximately 765,000 sq. ft. warehouse and distribution facility located at the northeast corner of Waverly 
Road and 207th Street in Edgerton, Kansas (the “Facility”), the costs of which will be paid for or reimbursed 
with the proceeds of not to exceed $60,000,000 of the City’s Industrial Revenue Bonds (ELHC LI, LLC 
Project) Series 2019 (the “Bonds”). 

 
B. In connection with the issuance of the Bonds, ELHC will lease the Facility to the City 

pursuant to a Base Lease Agreement, and the City will sublease the Facility to ELHC pursuant to a Lease 
Agreement. 
 
 C. Recipient is leasing the entire Facility from ELHC for the purpose of operating a 
distribution center on the condition that the City agree to provide an economic development grant to 
Recipient. 
 
 D. The City desires Recipient’s presence at the Facility for furthering the public purposes for 
which the Bonds will be issued and for the potential for economic benefits which could result from 
Recipient’s presence, including but not limited to the possibility for creation of jobs and for investment of 
private capital in the local economy. 
 

E. In recognition of such benefits and as set forth in Ordinance No. ____ approved by the City 
on May 9, 2019, the City is willing to make an economic development grant to Recipient on the terms and 
conditions set forth in this Agreement. 
 

AGREEMENTS: 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual terms, covenants and conditions contained 
herein, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

 
Section 1.  Economic Development Grant.  Subject to the conditions precedent in Section 2 and 

the availability of funds as described in Section 3, and compliance by Recipient with the other terms and 
provisions of this Agreement, the City agrees to make an economic development grant in the amount of 
$596,700 (the “Grant”) to Recipient.    The Grant shall be paid in thirteen equal installments of $45,900 
each, on April 1 and November 1 of each year, commencing April 1, 2021 and ending April 1, 2027 (or, if 
such date is not a business day, the next succeeding business day) (each such payment, a “Grant Payment”).  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, no Grant Payment shall be paid until such time that the Facility has been 
completed and Recipient is engaged in one or more of the Permitted Uses (as defined in Section 4) at the 
Facility, at which time the Facility shall be deemed “Operational.”  Any Grant Payment due prior to the 
Facility being deemed Operational shall be paid by the City within sixty days following the date the Facility 
becomes Operational. 

 



2 

Section 2.  Condition Precedent to Grant.  The obligation of the City to make the Grant is 
conditioned on the Recipient entering into a lease agreement with ELHC for the Facility for a term of at 
least 6.5 years (the “Recipient Lease”).  Recipient represents that a true and correct copy of the Recipient 
Lease has been delivered to the City’s legal counsel.  The City’s legal counsel has reviewed an executed 
copy of the Recipient Lease. 

 Section 3.  Grant Paid Solely from Public Infrastructure Fund.   

Recipient acknowledges that the City and Edgerton Land Holding Company, LLC, a Kansas limited 
liability company, have entered in to the Logistics Park Phase Two Development Agreement dated as of 
January 25, 2018 (the “Development Agreement”).  Article 5 of the Development Agreement created a 
Phase Two Public Infrastructure Fund (the “Fund”), and the City agreed to deposit certain Sources of Funds 
(as defined in the Development Agreement) in the Fund to complete certain public infrastructure 
improvements.  Pursuant to the terms of the Development Agreement, the City and Commerce Bank, as 
trustee (the “Trustee”) plan to enter in to a Master Trust Indenture (the “Master Indenture”) whereby the 
City will agree to deposit all Sources of Funds with the Trustee and the Trustee will agree to administer the 
Fund.  

Pursuant to Section 5.8(f) of the Development Agreement, the Master Indenture will contain a 
Grant Distribution Account (the “Grant Account”).  The parties agree that all Grant Payments will be paid 
solely from funds available in the Grant Account according to the priority of payment provisions waterfall 
provided for in Section 5.8 of the Development Agreement and as provided in the Master Indenture.  The 
Recipient acknowledges that the obligation of the City to make each Grant Payment is not a general 
obligation of the City and does not constitute an indebtedness of the City within the meaning of any 
constitutional or statutory debt limitation or restriction, and each Grant Payment is not payable in any 
manner by taxation.  Recipient acknowledges that it has reviewed Section 5.8 of the Development 
Agreement and acknowledges that the Grant will be paid in accordance with the waterfall provided for in 
such section.  Recipient further acknowledges that the City may, from time to time, make additional grants 
that are to be paid from funds in the Grant Account on a parity with the Grant. 

Section 4.  Permitted Use of Facility.  The Facility may be used by Recipient for the purpose of 
operating a warehouse and distribution center, and ancillary and related uses (the “Permitted Uses”). 

Section 5.  Agreement of Recipient to Maintain Active Operations.  Recipient agrees to use the 
Facility for one or more of the Permitted Uses and agrees to employ more than a nominal number of 
employees at the Facility, unless the Facility is closed for remodeling or repairs for a period not to exceed 
one year. 

Section 6.  Voluntary Community Involvement.  Upon terms and conditions to which the parties 
may later agree during the term of this Agreement, Recipient will use reasonable efforts to participate in 
community events.  These efforts may, but need not, include giving locally of cash or product donation and 
employee volunteer time.  Additionally, Recipient agrees to be a member of Elevate Edgerton during the 
entire term of this Agreement, with an investment of at least the “Grow” level. 

Section 7.  Termination of Agreement.  This Agreement shall terminate upon the earlier of (a) 
the City’s election following its notice to Recipient of a breach by Recipient of its obligations under this 
Agreement and the expiration of a 45-day cure period, or (b) the date the final Grant Payment is made to 
Recipient.  If this Agreement is terminated pursuant to clause (a) of the preceding sentence, the City shall 
have no obligation to make any Grant Payments which would become due after the expiration of Recipient’s 
opportunity to cure.  Notwithstanding anything contrary herein, if any Grant Payment is not made within 



3 

ninety (90) days of the dates set forth in Section 1 of this Agreement, Recipient may elect, in its sole 
discretion, to terminate this Agreement. 

 
Section 8.  Binding Effect; Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the 

benefit of the parties and their respective officers, directors, shareholders, agents, attorneys, employees, 
successors, successors in interest and assigns.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed 
according to the laws of the State of Kansas. 

  
Section 9.  Representations.  Each party represents and warrants that it (a) has made due and 

diligent inquiry into the facts and matters which are the subject matter of this Agreement; (b) fully 
understands the legal effect of this Agreement; and (c) is duly authorized and empowered to execute, deliver 
and perform this Agreement according to its terms and conditions. 

 
Section 10.  No Waiver of Breach.  No waiver of any condition or covenant contained in this 

Agreement or any breach thereof shall be taken to constitute a waiver of any subsequent condition, covenant 
or breach. 

   
Section 11.  Assignment.  Subject to Recipient’ rights of assignment or delegation provided herein, 

this Agreement may not be assigned or transferred by either party, in whole or part, to any other person, 
firm, corporation, or entity without the prior, express, written consent of the other party.  Notwithstanding 
anything to the contrary herein, Recipient may assign this Agreement and its rights under it or delegate its 
obligations under this Agreement to (i) any entity controlling, controlled by or under common control with 
Recipient, (ii) any entity resulting from the merger or consolidation of or with Recipient, or any entity 
controlling, controlled by or under common control with Recipient, (iii) any person or entity that acquires 
all (or substantially all) of the assets of Recipient, or any entity controlling, controlled by or under common 
control with Recipient, or (iv) any successor of Recipient, or any entity controlling, controlled by or under 
common control with Recipient, by reason of public offering, reorganization, dissolution, or sale of stock, 
membership or partnership interests or assets.  Recipient may exercise such rights of assignment or 
delegation in the preceding sentence following at least seven (7) days’ prior written notice to the City. 

 
Section 12.  Entire Agreement; Amendments in Writing.  This Agreement and the acts provided 

for herein is the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof, the terms 
and provisions of this Agreement are contractual and not mere recitals and no alterations, amendment, 
modification, or interpretation hereof shall be binding unless in writing and signed by all parties. 

  
Section 13.  Notice Addresses.  Any notice provided under this Agreement shall be sent by both 

email and first-class mail to the following email addresses and addresses: 
 
If to the City:  Edgerton City Hall 
   Attention:  City Administrator 
   404 E. Nelson Street 
   Edgerton, Kansas  66021 
   Email:  blinn@edgertonks.org 
 
With a copy to:  SA Legal Advisors LC 
   Attention:  Scott W. Anderson 
   8801 Renner Blvd., Suite 403 
   Lenexa, Kansas  66219 
   Email:  sanderson@SALegalAdvisors.com 
 

mailto:blinn@edgertonks.org
mailto:sanderson@SALegalAdvisors.com


4 

If to Recipient:  Hostess Brands, LLC 
    1 East Armour Boulevard 
    Kansas City, Missouri 64111 
    Email: jkalal@hostessbrands.com 
 

With a copy to:   Hostess Brands, LLC 
    1 East Armour Boulevard 
    Kansas City, Missouri 64111 
    Email: jsebree@hostessbrands.com 

 
Section 14.  Payment Instructions.  Each Grant Payment shall be delivered via U. S. Mail, or a 

nationally-recognized overnight courier service such as UPS or FedEx and sent to the notice address 
specified above.  

 
Section 15.  Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each 

of which shall be deemed to be an original but all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same 
instrument. 

 
Section 16. Effective Date.  This Agreement is effective hereto on the date first above written 

(“Effective Date”), and the term of this Agreement is the duration between the Effective Date and the date 
it terminates. 
 



5 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto on the date 
first above written. 
 

CITY: 
 

CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 

 
 

By:___________________________________ 
 Donald Roberts 
 Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Rachel James 
City Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Scott W. Anderson 
City Economic Development Counsel 
 

 
 
HOSTESS BRANDS, LLC, 

        a Delaware limited liability company 
 

 
 

By:___________________________________ 
 
Printed Name:___________________________ 
 
Date:__________________________________ 
 



 

Agenda Item: Consider Resolution No. 05-09-19E Temporarily Waiving City 
Prohibition As To The Sale And Consumption Of Alcoholic Liquor On Certain Public 
Property, And Recognizing Frontier Days As A “Public Festival” For Purposes Of The 
City’s Noise Restrictions 

 
 

City Council Action Item 
 
 

Council Meeting Date: May 9, 2019 
 
Department: Parks and Recreation 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Background/Description of Item: 
 
Edgerton Frontier Days will be held June 14-15, 2019. The Edgerton Frontier Days Committee 
has requested permission to sell and serve alcoholic liquor (i.e. alcoholic beverages other than 
3.2% beer [a/k/a cereal malt beverage]) at the Festival.  
 
Chapter III, Article I, Sections 3-108 and Section 3-202 of the Code of the City of Edgerton 
prohibits serving cereal malt beverages or alcoholic liquor within 200 feet of a church, school 
or library. This prohibition shall not apply to a special event permit holder if the applicant 
petitions the Governing Body for a waiver of the distance limitation. The Governing Body shall 
grant such waiver only following public notice and holding a hearing that finds the proximity of 
the establishment is not adverse to the public welfare or safety.  
 
City Council will hold a Public Hearing on May 9, 2019 prior to considering this resolution. 
 
If approved, Resolution No. 05-10-18E would grant the waiver requested by the Frontier Days 
Association, with the following stipulations: 
 

• The sale and consumption of alcoholic liquor shall be allowed in an area on Nelson 
Street between East Third Street and East Fourth Street (specifically designated and 
approved by the City Administrator) 

• Between the hours of 6:00 pm and 11:59 pm on June 14, 2019. 
• Between the hours of 2:00 pm and 11:59 pm on June 15, 2019. 
• Point of sale for alcoholic liquor shall be 307 E. Nelson Street by properly licensed 

individuals or groups only 
• No alcoholic liquor may be sold or dispensed in glass bottles or containers, only plastic, 

paper cups or cans may be used. 
 
Also within this same resolution is permission to waive the City’s noise restrictions in order for 
all to enjoy music as part of the festival on Friday June 14 and Saturday June 15.  It is 
anticipated that both concerts will be completed by 11:59 p.m. each evening. 



Recommendation: Approve Resolution No. 05-9-19E Temporarily Waiving City 
Prohibition As To The Sale And Consumption Of Alcoholic Liquor On Certain Public 
Property, And Recognizing Frontier Days As A “Public Festival” For Purposes Of The 
City’s Noise Restrictions 

 
City staff will inform the Johnson County Sheriff’s Office of the proposed request to serve 
alcoholic liquor on the above dates and hours as well as the request to waive the City’s noise 
restrictions.   
 
City Attorney has not yet reviewed the resolution and will provide any changes at City Council 
meeting. 
 
Related Ordinance(s) or Statue(s): Chapter III, Article I, Sections 3-108 and 3-202 

 
 
 
Funding Source: N/A 
 
Budget Allocated: N/A 
 
Finance Director Approval: N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enclosed:  Draft Resolution No. 05-9-19E 
 
Prepared by:  Scott Peterson, Assistant City Administrator 

Maddie Becker, Parks and Recreation Coordinator  
  
 



RESOLUTION NO. 05-09-19E 
 
A RESOLUTION TEMPORARILY WAIVING CITY PROHIBITION AS TO THE SALE AND 
CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOLIC LIQUOR ON CERTAIN PUBLIC PROPERTY, AND 
RECOGNIZING FRONTIER DAYS AS A “PUBLIC FESTIVAL” FOR PURPOSES OF THE 
CITY’S NOISE RESTRICTIONS 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the 2019 annual celebration known as Frontier Days will be held June 14 
through June 15 in the City of Edgerton, Kansas; and 
  
 WHEREAS, a request has been received by the City of Edgerton from the Edgerton 
Frontier Days Association for permission to sell and serve alcoholic liquor (i.e. alcoholic beverages 
other than 3.2% beer [a/k/a cereal malt beverage]) at its annual festival; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter III, Article 1, Section 3-202 of the Code of the City of Edgerton 
prohibits the serving alcoholic liquor within 200 feet of a church, school, nursing home, library or 
hospital, but said prohibition may be waived by the governing body after public notice, followed 
by a hearing and finding by the governing body that the proximity of the location, where the 
cereal malt beverage or alcoholic liquor will be served, is not adverse to the public welfare or 
safety; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Article 6 of Chapter XI of the Code of the City of Edgerton regulates the 
levels of noise and sound within the City but said regulations do not apply when the governing 
body recognizes the event where the noise and sound is to occur as a “public festival”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City wishes to recognize this event as a “public festival” and to be exempt 
from any noise or sound restrictions during the pendency of the event.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
EDGERTON, KANSAS, THAT: 
 
SECTION ONE: Finding: That the Governing Body, after receiving a request from the Frontier 
Days Association, does hereby find and conclude that the proximity of the requested location for 
the sale and consumption of alcoholic liquor is not adverse to the public welfare or safety and the 
Governing Body's conclusion in this regard is supported by the fact that the Frontier Days 
Association has served cereal malt and alcoholic liquor beverages in this location for several years 
without any adversity to the public welfare or safety. 
 
SECTION TWO: Waiver Granted: That the Governing Body, pursuant to Chapter III, Article I, 
Section 3-202 of the Edgerton City Code, hereby grants the waiver requested by the Frontier 
Days Association, with the following stipulations: 
 

a) The sale and consumption of alcoholic liquor shall be allowed in an area on Nelson 
Street between East Third Street and East Fourth Street (specifically designated and 
approved by the City Administrator) between the hours of 6:00 pm and 11:59 pm on 
June 14, 2019 and between the hours of 2:00 pm and 11:59 pm on June 15, 2019. 



b) The location of the point of sale for alcoholic liquor shall be 307 E. Nelson Street by 
properly licensed individuals or groups only. 

c) No alcoholic liquor may be sold or dispensed in glass bottles or containers, only plastic, 
paper cups or cans may be used. 

 
SECTION THREE: Frontier Days a “Public Festival”: Edgerton Frontier Days is recognized as 
a public festival and, therefore, the noise restrictions contained within Article 6 of Chapter XI of 
the Code of the City of Edgerton shall not apply to noise and sounds made or generated by the 
2019 public festival on June 14 and 15. 
 
SECTION FOUR - Effective Date: This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force 
immediately after its adoption by the Governing Body. 
 
ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF 
EDGERTON, KANSAS ON THE 9TH DAY OF MAY 2019. 
      
ATTEST:      CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 
 
 
______________________________  By: _______________________________ 
Rachel A. James, City Clerk           Donald Roberts, Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Lee W. Hendricks, City Attorney  



 

Agenda Item: Consider Resolution No. 05-9-19F Authorizing Special 
Event Permit For Sale And Consumption Of Alcoholic Liquor On Certain 
Public Property Within The City Of Edgerton, Kansas 

 
 

City Council Action Item 
 
 

Council Meeting Date: May 9, 2019 
 
Department: Parks and Recreation 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Background/Description of Item: 
 
Edgerton Frontier Days will be held June 14-15, 2019. The Edgerton Frontier Days Committee 
has requested permission to sell and serve alcoholic liquor (i.e. alcoholic beverages other than 
3.2% beer [a/k/a cereal malt beverage]) at the Festival.  
 
Article 5 of the Edgerton Municipal Code states that it is unlawful for any person granted a 
Special Event Permit by the State of Kansas to sell or serve any alcoholic liquor within the City 
without first obtaining a local special event permit. Section 3-503 requires an application for 
special event permit be submitted at least 14 days before the event to the City Clerk. Frontier 
Days Association has submitted that application with the details noted in the Code.  
 
Please find enclosed draft Resolution No. 05-09-19F that would approve the local special event 
permit for Frontier Days with the following stipulations:  
 

• The sale and consumption of alcoholic liquor shall be allowed in an area on Nelson 
Street between East Third Street and East Fourth Street (specifically designated and 
approved by the City Administrator) 

• Between the hours of 6:00 pm and 11:59 pm on June 14, 2018. 
• Between the hours of 2:00 pm and 11:59 pm on June 15, 2018. 
• Point of sale for alcoholic liquor shall be 307 E. Nelson Street by properly licensed 

individuals or groups only 
• No alcoholic liquor may be sold or dispensed in glass bottles or containers, only plastic, 

paper cups or cans may be used. 
 
Note: the City Council will consider before this item the request for waiver for the prohibition 
of sale of alcohol with certain distance of church, library or school. 
 
Frontier Days has also requested the City Council consider waiving any City application or 
permit fees in appreciation for the many benefits the community enjoys from the festival. The 
City special event permit fee is $50. The enclosed draft resolution includes waiving this fee as 
has been custom in past years.  



Recommendation: Approve Resolution No. 05-9-19F Authorizing Special 
Event Permit For Sale And Consumption Of Alcoholic Liquor On Certain 
Public Property Within The City Of Edgerton, Kansas 

 
City Attorney has not yet reviewed the resolution and will provide any changes at City Council 
meeting. 
 
Related Ordinance(s) or Statue(s): Article 5 

 
 
 
Funding Source: N/A 
 
Budget Allocated: N/A 
 
Finance Director Approval: N/A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Enclosed:  Draft Resolution No. 05-9-19F 
 
 
Prepared by:  Scott Peterson, Assistant City Administrator 

Maddie Becker, Parks and Recreation Coordinator  
  
 



RESOLUTION NO. 05-09-19F 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT FOR THE SALE AND 
CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOLIC LIQUOR ON CERTAIN PUBLIC PROPERTY WITHIN 
THE CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the 2019 annual celebration known as Frontier Days is scheduled for June 14 
through June 15 in the City of Edgerton, Kansas; and 
  
 WHEREAS, Article 5 of Chapter III of the Code of the City of Edgerton requires that an 
entity desiring to sell and serve alcoholic liquor on public property at an event open to the public 
must, in addition to obtaining the required permit from the State of Kansas, also apply and obtain 
a Special Event Permit from the City; and  
 
 WHEREAS, a request has been received by the City of Edgerton from the Edgerton 
Frontier Days Association for a Special Event Permit to sell and serve alcoholic liquor (i.e. alcoholic 
beverages other than 3.2% beer [a/k/a cereal malt beverage]) at its annual festival on June 14 
and 15, 2019. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 
EDGERTON, KANSAS, THAT: 
 
SECTION ONE: Special Event Permit Authorized: That the Governing Body does hereby 
authorize the City Clerk, in accordance with Article 5 of Chapter III of the Edgerton City Code, to 
issue the Frontier Days Association a Special Event Permit for sale and consumption of alcoholic 
liquor per the requirements contained within Article 5 and with the following additional 
stipulations: 
 

a) The Special Event Permit provided for herein is only valid if the required permit from 
the State of Kansas is obtained by the Frontier Days Association. 

b) The sale and consumption of alcoholic liquor shall be allowed in an area on Nelson 
Street between East Third Street and East Fourth Street (specifically designated and 
approved by the City Administrator) between the hours of 6:00 pm and 11:59 pm on 
June 14, 2019 and between the hours of 2:00 pm and 11:59 pm on June 15, 2019. 

c) The location of the point of sale for alcoholic liquor shall be 307 E. Nelson Street by 
properly licensed individuals or groups only. 

d) No alcoholic liquor may be sold or dispensed in glass bottles or containers, only plastic, 
paper cups or cans may be used. 

 
SECTION TWO: Waiver of Application Fees: The City of Edgerton, in appreciation for the 
many benefits enjoyed by the community from the annual Frontier Days festival, waives any City 
application or permit fees for issuance of the Special Event Permit.  
 
SECTION THREE - Effective Date: This Resolution shall take effect and be in full force 
immediately after its adoption by the Governing Body. 
 



ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF 
EDGERTON, KANSAS ON THE 9TH DAY OF MAY 2019.  
      
ATTEST:      CITY OF EDGERTON, KANSAS 
 
 
 
______________________________  By: _______________________________ 
Rachel A. James, City Clerk           Donald Roberts, Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Lee W. Hendricks City Attorney  


	Agenda 05-09-2019
	MInutes 04-25-2019
	Resolution 05-09-19A Annual Appointments
	Resolution 05-09-19B Street Closure Summer Kickoff Party
	Resolution 05-09-19C Noice Restrictions Summer Kickoff Party
	Resolution No. 05-09-19D Frontier Days Street Closures etc
	Resolution No 05-09-19E Waive 200 Ft Prohibit for Sale of Alcohol
	Resolution No. 05-09-19F Frontier Days Special Event Permit for Alcholic Liquor



